
Coral Springs 

Improvement District 

 

Agenda 

 

October 16, 2017 

Agenda Page 1



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 

October 9, 2017 

 

Board of Supervisors  

Coral Springs Improvement District 

 

Dear Board Members: 

 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

will be held on October 16, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Offices, 10300 NW 11th Manor, 

Coral Springs, Florida.  Following is the advance agenda for the meeting. 

 

1.    Roll Call 

2.    Approval of the Minutes of the September 18, 2017 Meeting. 

3.    Audience Comments 

4.    Approval of Financial Statements for September 2017  

5.    Review and Discussion of Dock Policy (Tabled Item) 

6.    Discussion Regarding Debris Removal and Disposal 

7.    Consideration of Purchase of Cartridge Filters for the Water Plant 

Piggybacking Off of the Palm Beach County Contract 

8.    Consideration of Bid #2018-01-F for Cargo Trailer (Placeholder) 

9.    Change Order #1 with TRIO for a Total Decrease of $30,274.99 

10.    Consideration of Work Authorizations 

A. Work Authorization #128 for NaOCI Tank 1 and 3 Replacement for a 

Total Cost of $112,893 

B. Work Authorization #129 for WTP Fluoride Storage and Feed 

Improvements for a Total Cost of $325,700 

C. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #115 for the Lime Plant 

Demolition for a Total Decrease of $29,604.44 

D. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #125 for RO Membrane 

Concentrate Valve Replacement for a Total Decrease of $2,750.58 

11. Staff Reports  

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

 Update on Assessment Methodology  

B. Engineer – Rick Olson  

C. Department Reports  

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

 Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 Stormwater – Shawn Frankenhauser  (Report Included) 

 

Agenda Page 2



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer  

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 

D. Attorney  

12. Supervisors’ Requests 

13. Adjournment 

 

Any supporting documents not included in the agenda package will be distributed at the 

meeting.  If you have any questions prior to the meeting, please contact me. 

 

Sincerely,  
 

Kenneth Cassel 
 

Kenneth Cassel/sd 

District Manager 

 

cc: Stephen Bloom  Shawn Frankenhauser Kay Holmes 

 Seth Behn   Terry Lewis Beverley Servé  

 Dan Daly Jamie Barreto Joe Stephens 

David McIntosh Diane Rottner Jan Zilmer                                          

Curt Dwiggins  Rick Olson Tim Martin   

Agenda Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES  

Agenda Page 4



   

Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

was held on Monday, September 18, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Office, 10300 NW 11th 

Manor, Coral Springs, Florida.   

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

  

 Martin Shank President    

 Nick St. Cavish  Secretary 

      

 Also present were: 

  

 Kenneth Cassel District Manager  

 Seth Behn District Counsel  

 Dan Daly Director of Operations 

 Jan Zilmer  Human Resources 

 David McIntosh Director of Utilities 

 Kay Holmes District Accountant 

 Rick Olson District Engineer 

 Joe Stephens Water Department 

 Curt Dwiggins Field Superintendent  

 Bert Underwood Wastewater Department  

 Shawn Frankenhauser Drainage Department 

 Jaime Barreto Consulting Engineer  

    

 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken during the September 18, 

2017 CSID Board of Supervisors Meeting.  

    

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the August 21, 

2017 Meeting 

 Each Board member received a copy of the minutes of the August 21, 2017 meeting and 

Dr. Shank requested any corrections, additions or deletions. 

 There being none,  

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the minutes of the August 21, 2017 meeting were approved. 

 

 

Agenda Page 5



September 18, 2017  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 

August 2017 

There being no questions or comments, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the financials were approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt the Water and 

Sewer Budget, Resolution 2017-11 

 Mr. Cassel opened the public hearing.   

 There being no members of the public, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the public hearing was closed. 

 

 The Board reviewed the proposed budget. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor Resolution 2017-11, adopting the water and sewer budget for 

Fiscal Year 2018, was adopted. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review and Discussion of Dock Policy 

  This item was tabled. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Water and Sewer Standards 

(Tabled Item/Placeholder)  

  Mr. Dwiggins reported he met with Mr. Eckler.  He looked over everything and the only 

thing that needs to be added is the wiring schematics for the lift station. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Underwater Solutions, 

Inc. for Inspection and Cleaning of Water 

Storage Facilities Piggybacking Off of 

Orlando Utilities Commission 

 Mr. Stephens explained the administrative codes require the storage tanks on site to be 

cleaned, inspected and certified by an engineer every five years.  This is due by February of 2018.   

 

 

 

Agenda Page 6



September 18, 2017  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 3 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor a contract with Underwater Solutions to inspect and clean the 

water storage facilities, piggybacking off of Orlando Utilities 

Commission, was approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Purchase of Ford F-150 

Truck for the Stormwater Department 

Piggybacking Off of the State of Florida 

 Mr. Frankenhauser reviewed the quote for a Ford F-150 truck. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the purchase of a Ford F-150 truck from Duval Ford, 

piggybacking off of the State of Florida at a total cost of 

$29,425.20, was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Aquatic Herbicide 

Purchases for Fiscal Year 2018  

 Mr. Frankenhauser reviewed the bid tabulation for the purchase of aquatic herbicides.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the aquatic herbicides were awarded as outlined in the bid 

tabulation at a cost not to exceed $116,000. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Change Order #1 to 

Work Authorization #117 for a Decrease 

of $6,219 

 Mr. Olsen reviewed Change Order #1 to Work Authorization #117 related to work on the 

Tamarac interconnect.  There is a reduction of $6,219. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor Change Order #1 to Work Authorization #117 for a decrease 

of $6,219 was approved. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

 Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2018 

 The following was discussed: 

 Mr. Cassel reported Mr. Lewis has been trying to contact the City Attorney after 

Hurricane Irma to finalize the language on the storm debris storage agreement.  He 

requested authorization for Dr. Shank to execute the agreement subject to final 

language. 

Agenda Page 7



September 18, 2017  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 4 

 Dr. Shank expressed concern because the City wants the District to pay prior to 

knowing what the charges will be.   

 There was discussion regarding the assessment methodology.  The model of the 

assessment methodology is built.  Most of the data is in.  They are researching some 

data between impervious to non-impervious areas from the County. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2018 was approved as 

presented. 

 

 B. Engineer – Rick Olson (Report Included) 

 Mr. Olson distributed and reviewed the project status report, a copy of which is attached 

hereto and made a part of the public record.   

 

 C. Department Reports 

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 The above item is for informational purposes only.  Mr. Daly commented on how well 

staff worked together during the hurricane.  They are coordinating with SWCD to keep a log of 

resident calls regarding debris in canals.     

   

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

 Mr. McIntosh reported all areas on site have been inspected.  The damages covered by 

insurance are minor and will not meet the deductible so staff has taken care of them.  The District 

did not lose water pressure during the storm and the canals were in good shape.  Mr. 

Frankenhauser lowered the canal levels prior to the storm and managed them through the storm.  

All staff did a great job.  Only 11 lift stations were out of service.   

 

 Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record.   

 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 

Agenda Page 8



September 18, 2017  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 5 

 Stormwater –Shawn Frankenhauser (Report Included) 
 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record.  Mr. Frankenhauser distributed charts showing the water levels for the East and 

West Basins as a result of Hurricane Irma. 

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record.    

 

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 

 Mr. Zilmer reported there will be a lunch next Friday, September 29, 2017, to mark the 

end of the Fiscal Year.  The Workforce surveys will be going out to the employees in 

approximately two weeks.  Flu shots will be provided the second or third week of October. 

 There was discussion regarding retirement benefits.  CSID contribution will be increased 

by one percent. 

  

D. Attorney  

 Mr. Behn reported the following: 

 Resolution 2017-10 is ready to be executed. 

 The Florida Legislature now requires a retainer letter for lobbying services, which 

needs to be executed. 

 He provided an overview of the requirements for Shade Meetings. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Requests  

 Dr. Shank distributed an article regarding the City of Coral Springs’ support for a bill to 

change proxy voting for special districts.   

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports (Continued) 

 C. Department Reports (Continued) 

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 
  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the department reports were accepted. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Requests (Continued) 

 Mr. St. Cavish asked what the restrictions are for a Supervisor voting when they are 

not physically in attendance.   

Agenda Page 9



September 18, 2017  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 6 

 Mr. Behn responded he would have to look into the statutory requirements to see if it 

is a limitation within Chapter 298 or if it is part of a broader Sunshine requirement. 

 Dr. Shank requested the workshop that was cancelled be rescheduled for after October 

10, 2017.  He also thanked everyone for keeping the District running during the 

hurricane.   

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 

  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Dr. Shank with all in 

favor the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

     

Kenneth Cassel   Martin Shank 

Assistant Secretary    President  

Agenda Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIALS  

Agenda Page 11



Agenda Page 12



Agenda Page 13



Agenda Page 14



Agenda Page 15



Agenda Page 16



Agenda Page 17



Agenda Page 18



Agenda Page 19



Agenda Page 20



Agenda Page 21



Agenda Page 22



Agenda Page 23



Agenda Page 24



Agenda Page 25



Agenda Page 26



Agenda Page 27



Agenda Page 28



Agenda Page 29



Agenda Page 30



Agenda Page 31



Agenda Page 32



Agenda Page 33



Agenda Page 34



Agenda Page 35



Agenda Page 36



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 37



 

00848953-1   
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT RIGHT-OF-WAY POLICY 

The current situation within the Coral Springs Improvement District (“CSID”) is that there 

are 21 structures including several docks that have been constructed by homeowners whose 

residences are located adjacent and contiguous to various water bodies that constitute CSID 

facilities.  The structures were built without a permit or other authorization from the CSID Board 

of Supervisors (“Board”).  The structures are located within maintenance easements granted to 

CSID for maintenance of the waterways or on property owned outright by CSID.  According to 

CSID staff, in some cases, the structures may adversely impact CSID staff’s ability to maintain its 

rights-of-ways or the water bodies for which CSID is responsible for proper water management 

and flood protection purposes.  Further, some of the structures are poorly maintained and may 

cause injury to anyone attempting to use them. 

CSID has previously maintained a policy of prohibition of structures within its rights-of-

ways or property if someone requests a permit to construct a structure.  Section 298.22(9) Florida 

Statutes provides authority for the CSID Board to control connection to and use of district rights-

of-ways, property or facilities such as canals or lakes.  

From the date of adoption of this amended policy, no new structures shall be permitted 

within CSID’s rights-of-way or property unless the structure is in compliance with the criteria 

contained herein.  A new structure may be permitted, in the sole discretion of the Board, if the 

structure leaves at least twenty feet of opening for right-of-way maintenance from water’s edge to 

the landward property line of the right-of-way or CSID property, will not damage the right-of-way 

or canal or lake bank and the property owner has received a building permit from the City of Coral 

Springs.  This criteria may be waived by the Board if CSID staff confirms the proposed structure 

Agenda Page 38



 

00848953-1  -2- 
 

will not prevent proper maintenance of the CSID right-of-way or property and will not damage the 

right-of-way or canal or lake bank. 

If any structure is constructed without a CSID permit or waiver after the date of adoption 

of this policy, CSID staff shall issue a notice of violation to the owner of the property where the 

structure is located.  The notice of violation shall state that the owner must remove the encroaching 

structure within a specified number of days at owner’s expense.  If the owner fails to remove the 

encroaching structure within the specified time period, CSID may remove the encroaching 

structure and the property owner shall be liable for double the cost of removal and repair of the 

right-of-way or property including all administrative costs pursuant to Section 298.66(2), Florida 

Statutes. 

The owners of any structures existing as of the date of adoption of this amended policy 

shall apply to CSID for a permit.  Such permit may only be issued in instances where the structure 

meets the criteria established pursuant to this amended policy.  Provided, the Board may grant a 

waiver for those structures that do not comply with the criteria of this amended policy but do not 

prevent CSID staff from performing proper maintenance of the CSID right-of-way or property and 

do not cause erosion or damage to the canal or lake bank.  To receive a permit or waiver from 

CSID for an existing dock, the property owner must execute an Encroachment Removal 

Agreement in a form provided by CSID.  All structures must be removed at the end of the 

structure’s useful life or when the structure falls into disrepair or becomes unsafe and is not 

repaired by the owner after written notice from CSID.  

Agenda Page 39



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 40



Agenda Page 41



Agenda Page 42



Agenda Page 43



Agenda Page 44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eighth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 45



Placeholder for Bid #2018-01-F for Cargo Trailer 

Agenda Page 46



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 47



Agenda Page 48



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tenth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 49



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10A. 
  

Agenda Page 50



Agenda Page 51



Agenda Page 52



Agenda Page 53



Agenda Page 54



Agenda Page 55



Agenda Page 56



Agenda Page 57



Agenda Page 58



Agenda Page 59



Agenda Page 60



Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62



Agenda Page 63



Agenda Page 64



 

 

 

 

 

10B. 
  

Agenda Page 65



  
      1 of 12 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 

CSID WA No. 129 

Globaltech No. 151009 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization 

authorizes the FIRM to provide services under the terms and conditions set forth 

herein and in the AGREEMENT, which is incorporated herein by reference as 

though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to the CSID WTP Fluoride 

Storage and Feed Improvements, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 

FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having a direct 

contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the performance of a 

part of the work contracted for under the terms of this Work Authorization with the 

OWNER. 

 

Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The OWNER would like to replace their existing fluoride (hydrofluorosilicic acid) 

storage and feed system.  The existing system is aging, doesn’t provide adequate 

hurricane protection or containment for spills.  The fluoride injection point is on the 

finished water main as it leaves the water treatment plant (WTP), which doesn’t 

allow for complete mixing or a buffering time to make adjustments.  Lastly, there is 

no continuous fluoride analyzer, samples are collected manually once per shift.  

The new fluoride storage and feed system would include all new storage tanks, 

transfer and metering pumps, an indoor containment area and a new fluoride 

Agenda Page 66



  
      2 of 12 

injection point upstream of the ground storage tanks.  A continuous on-line fluoride 

residual analyzer will also be installed on the existing sample line in the membrane 

building.  Fluoride dosage will be flow-paced based on the existing flow meter 

located on the transfer pipeline.  It will then be fine-tuned based on the fluoride 

analyzer measurements.  The goal will be to have a final fluoride residual of 0.7 

mg/L.  

 

Task 1 – Engineering Services  

This task includes project management and engineering services required 

to complete the project.   

 

Engineering and Project Management 

1. Attend preliminary scoping meetings with the OWNER to assist in 

preliminary design parameters and overall scope. 

2. Assist the OWNER with completion of a State of Florida Department of 

Health Water Fluoridation Grant Application.    

3. Prepare preliminary design drawings and submit five (5) sets to the 

OWNER.  Drawings will be provided in half-size (11”x17”) format.  

Anticipated drawings include the following: 

a. Cover/Site Location 

b. General Mechanical/Civil Sheet 

c. Site Plan/Piping Plan 

d. Demolition Plan 

e. Fluoride Storage and Feed Plan 

f. Fluoride Storage and Feed Details 

g. Standard Details. 

h. Electrical Notes and Legend 

i. Electrical Site Plan 

j. Electrical Details 

k. Instrumentation Notes and Legend 

l. Process and Instrumentation Diagram 

Agenda Page 67



  
      3 of 12 

4. Meet with the OWNER, to discuss the preliminary design review 

comments.   

5. Incorporate the preliminary design review comments into a final design 

drawing set.  Submit five (5) sets of final design half-size drawings to the 

OWNER. 

6. Prepare and submit permit application to the Broward County Health 

Department (BCHD).  Close out permit at the end of the project. 

7. Prepare detailed construction schedule to include as a minimum; 

design, site mobilization, detailed construction activities, scheduled shut 

downs and durations, equipment/material delivery times, testing, and 

startup and commissioning. 

8. Coordinate material and equipment purchase and subcontractors. 

9. Review, administer, and track equipment submittals.   

10. Schedule and conduct meetings, inspections, and testing with 

OWNER’s staff. 

11. Attend progress meetings and coordination meetings 

12. Assist the OWNER with periodic construction progress submittals 

associated with the grant program.   

13. Oversee construction activities enforcing the conditions of the design. 

14. Conduct Substantial Completion inspection.  Develop punch-list items in 

association with OWNER.  

15. Conduct Final Completion inspection meeting and site walk through with 

OWNER.  

16. Prepare record drawings.  Record drawings will include as-built 

elevations and coordinates of fittings, Record drawings will be delivered 

to the OWNER in AutoCAD file format, Adobe PDF, and three (3) copies 

of 11” X 17” half-size drawings.   

 

Task 2 – Construction Services 

This task entails constructing the fluoride storage and feed system.  The 

work, in general consists of the following:   

Agenda Page 68



  
      4 of 12 

 

1. Demolish the existing fluoride system.  This includes removal and proper 

disposal of the existing fluoride bulk tank, transfer pump, day tank, and 

metering pump skid. Disconnect and cap the existing fluoride feed line 

underground near the fluoride room and in the existing injection vault.  

Cap the existing tap on the injection point.  The existing bulk fluoride 

storage pad and wood canopy will remain.     

2. Modify the existing fluoride metering pump room to include a 

containment curb, new bulk tank support pad, below slab sump.  Coat 

the fluoride room, from top of containment curb down, with an epoxy 

novalac coating.  Coat the fluoride room interior walls with an acrylic 

latex paint. Provide FRP grating and grating frame over new sump.  As 

best as possible, the sump will be located in the existing low point in the 

slab.  The existing floor will not be sloped toward the sump.  

3. Install HDPE bulk tank (approximately 650 gallons) and day tank 

(approximately 60 gallons), mag-drive transfer pump, metering pump 

skid and sump pump in fluoride room.  Install all associated pipe, valves, 

fittings and appurtenances associated with storing and feeding fluoride.  

Piping material of construction will be CPVC.  The bulk tank will be 

equipped with a ultrasonic level indicator and a weight scale will be 

supplied for the day tank.  The transfer pump will operate manually but 

a high-level alarm will automatically turn off the transfer switch when the 

high level is reached.  A level switch will be installed in the sump. The 

sump pump will be operated manually only, using a local switch.  

4. Install two fluoride feed lines from the fluoride room to the injection 

location on the transfer pipe at the degasifier transfer pump station.  

Each set of feed lines will be 3/8” Teflon tubing inside a 2” PVC 

containment pipe.  Only one of the fluoride lines will be connected to a 

new saddle tap on the ductile iron pipe just before it goes below grade.  

The other fluoride line will be capped at each end and shall serve as a 

Agenda Page 69



  
      5 of 12 

backup.  Install a small concrete maintenance pad or gravel around the 

pipe at the injection point.   

5. Install a new fluoride analyzer (Prominent, or equal) on the existing 

sample line on the wall in the RO building, next to the existing analyzers.   

6. Pipe will be painted appropriate colors for the service and pipe labels 

will be attached. 

7. Program the existing PLC and modify existing SCADA HMI for the new 

fluoride system.  

8. Restore damaged sod to match existing.      
 
Assumptions 
 
Assumptions for the project are as follows: 
 
 No lighting modifications are included. 

 The OWNER will be responsible to empty the remaining fluoride in the 

existing bulk tank. 

 The fluoride room ceiling will not be painted.  Other than spot painting of 

areas damaged during construction, no exterior walls or doors will be 

painted. 

 Working hours will be Monday through Friday from approximately 8:00 

AM until 5:00 PM.  

 OWNER will pay the permit fees. 

 Globaltech will conform to the grant spending timeline requirements, 

which requires completion of the grant related items by June 30, 2018.  

This assumes that this Work Authorization will be approved by 

November 15, 2017.  

 An allowance of $5,000 is included with this project.  Allowance is only 

to be accessed with OWNER’s written approval.  Unused portion of 

allowance to be credited back to OWNER.  Allowance is in place for use 

at the OWNER’s discretion for additional work or for unforeseen 

conditions.  

 

Agenda Page 70



  
      6 of 12 

Section 3 – Location 

The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be at the CSID Water Treatment 

Plant.  

 

Section 4 – Deliverables 

The FIRM will provide the following Deliverables to OWNER: 

 Preliminary and final design drawings.   

 Submittals for materials/equipment.  

 Construction Improvements 

 Record Drawings of Improvements 

 
Section 5 – Time of Performance 

Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a Notice to 

Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to the following 

schedule: 

 

Task       Time Elapsed to Completion 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 
Preliminary Design 90 Days after NTP 
Final Design 135 Days after NTP  
Permitting  135 Days after NTP 

Construction of Improvements 300 Days after NTP 

 

Section 6 – Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

2. Total job price:  $325,700.00.   

3. On the terms contained in the FIRM’s said proposal for the doing of said 

work and the said award therefore, and the specifications herein specifically 

referred to and made a part of this contract.  

Agenda Page 71



  
      7 of 12 

4. The cost for the above scope of services is a lump sum (LS).  The LS is 

based on the materials, methods, and assumptions presented in the scope 

of services and may be adjusted based on final detail design and alternative 

selections or omissions.  The LS shall not be greater than the stated amount 

unless there is an approved increase in the scope of services.   

5. A Budget Summary for the above LS is provided in Attachment A.   

 
Section 7 – Application for Progress Payment 

1. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, at the end of each month, the FIRM 

shall submit to the OWNER for review, an Application for Progress Payment 

filled out and signed by the FIRM covering the Work completed as of the 

date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation 

as is required by the AGREEMENT.  

2. The Application for Progress Payment shall identify the amount of the FIRM 

Total Earnings to Date based upon value of original contract Work 

performed to date as approved by fully executed Change Orders.  

3. Payment shall be based upon percentage of work completed based upon 

the approved schedule of values. Retainage in the amount of 10% will be 

withheld on the calculated value of any work, with the exception of stored 

materials which may be paid at the supplier's invoiced cost. At FIRM's 

request, after 50% completion of the work has been achieved, the OWNER 

will implement a reduction in retainage to 5% of all future pay requests. If 

retainage is reduced, FIRM may not withhold more than 5% retainage from 

subcontractors or suppliers and will be required to certify compliance with 

F.S. 218.70 et seq on each subsequent pay application. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, in no instance can the amount retained be less than the value 

of OWNER's good faith claims plus the value of the work the OWNER 

determines remains to be put in place or required to be performed as 

remedial activities. For the purposes of this section, 50% completion shall 

be that point in time when OWNER determines that half of the Work 

required by the Contract has been completed. In no event shall the Work 

be determined to be 50% completed before the OWNER has paid 50% of 

Agenda Page 72



  
      8 of 12 

the Contract amount and 50% of the Contract time has expired. The amount 

of previous Pay Estimate payments shall then be subtracted to equal the 

Balance Due during the Pay Estimate period.  

4. When the OWNER reduces the retainage to five percent (5%), FIRM must 

obtain the written consent of the Surety Companies furnishing the required 

Public Construction Bond on consent forms provided by the OWNER. The 

OWNER may reinstate the retainage up to ten percent (10%) if the OWNER 

determines, at its discretion, that the FIRM is not making satisfactory 

progress toward final completion of the Work or where there is other specific 

cause for such withholding.  

5. Partial payment may be made for the delivered cost of stored materials 

planned for incorporation into the Work, provided such materials meet the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, and the 

Specifications, and are delivered and suitably stored at the project site, or 

at another location acceptable to the OWNER.  Such material must be 

stored in a secure manor acceptable to the OWNER, and in accordance 

with the manufacturer's recommendations.   

6. The delivered cost of such stored or stockpiled materials may be included 

in any subsequent application for payment provided the FIRM meets the 

following conditions:  

a. An applicable purchase order or supplier's invoice is provided listing 

the materials in detail, the cost of each item, and identifies this 

specific contract by name. 

b. The materials are fully insured against loss or damage (from 

whatever source) or disappearance prior to incorporation into the 

Work.  

c. Stored materials approved for payment by the OWNER shall not be 

removed from the designated storage area except for incorporation 

into the Work. 

d. Evidence that the FIRM has verified quantity and quality of the 

materials delivered (verified packing list). 

Agenda Page 73



  
      9 of 12 

7. It is further agreed between the parties that the transfer of title and the 

OWNER's payment for any stored or stockpiled materials pursuant to 

these General Conditions, and any applicable provisions of the 

Supplementary General Conditions, shall in no way relieve the FIRM of 

the responsibility of ensuring the correctness of those materials and for 

furnishing and placing such materials in accordance with the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, the Technical 

Specifications, and any approved changes thereto. 

8. The following monthly Application for Progress Payment shall be 

accompanied by Bills of Sale, copies of paid invoices, releases of lien, 

or other documentation warranting that the FIRM has received the 

stored materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, 

security interests, and encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these 

General Conditions referred to as "Liens") and evidence that the stored 

materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance 

and other arrangements to protect the OWNER's interest therein, all of 

which shall be satisfactory to the OWNER.  

9. The FIRM shall warrant and guarantee that title to all Work, materials, 

and equipment covered by an Application for Progress Payment, 

whether incorporated in the Work or not, will pass to the OWNER no 

later than the time of Final Payment free and clear of all liens or other 

encumbrances.  

10. Progress Payments shall be made in accordance with the Local 

Government Prompt Payment Act. In the event any dispute with respect 

to any payment or pay request cannot be resolved between the FIRM 

and OWNER's project staff, FIRM may, in accordance with the 

alternative dispute resolution requirements of Florida Statute section 

218.72, et seq, demand in writing a meeting with and review by the 

OWNER’S (agency) director. In the absence of the agency director, a 

deputy director may conduct the meeting and review. Such meeting and 

review shall occur within ten (10) business days of receipt by OWNER 

Agenda Page 74



  
      10 of 12 

of FIRM’s written demand. The OWNER’s manager, shall issue a written 

decision on the dispute within ten (10) business days of such meeting. 

This decision shall be deemed the OWNER's final decision for the 

purposes of the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.  

11. The OWNER may refuse to make payment of the full amount because 

claims have been made against the OWNER on account of the FIRM's 

performance of the Work, or because Liens have been filed in 

connection with the Work, or there are other items entitling the OWNER 

to a credit against the amount recommended, but the OWNER must give 

the FIRM written notice within twenty (20) business days after the date 

on which the invoice is stamped as received which specifies the invoice 

deficiency and any action necessary to make the invoice complete and 

proper. 

 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 

The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any labor 

or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor and equipment 

necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at the expense of the FIRM.  

Property of any kind that may be on the premises, which are the site of the 

performance of this contract, during the performance of this Work Authorization, 

shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Joe Stephens as the OWNER's 

representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, 

the OWNER will: 

 Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 

requested by FIRM 

 Pay for any required permit fees 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent contractor in 

its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates David Schuman 

as the FIRM’s representative.  

Agenda Page 75



  
      11 of 12 

 

Section 9 – Insurance 

The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth the 

type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to the minimum 

requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 

Section 10 – Level of Service 

The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the FIRM 

thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is not maintained 

at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The OWNER will determine in 

its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory level of service. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 

The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 

  

Agenda Page 76



  
      12 of 12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  twelve (12)  
pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 
by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 
in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written. 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature of Witness 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
_________________________________ 
Signature of President 
 
 
Dr. Marty Shank                                       .             
Printed Name of President 
 
_________________________________ 
Date 

 Approved as to form and legality 
 
_________________________________ 
District Counsel 

 
State of Florida 
County of Palm Beach 
 
The foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before me on this 

___ day of _________, 2017 by  
 
_________________________  
who is personally known to me OR 
produced ____________________ 
as identification. 
____________________________ 
Signature of Notary  

FIRM 
 
_____________________________________ 
Company 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
Troy Lyn, P.E., Vice President                          . 
Name and Title (typed or printed) 
 
____________________________________ 
Date 

 

Agenda Page 77



 

  

Attachment A 

 

Budget Summary 
 

Agenda Page 78



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10C. 
  

Agenda Page 79



Agenda Page 80



Agenda Page 81



Agenda Page 82



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10D 

Agenda Page 83



Agenda Page 84



Agenda Page 85



Agenda Page 86



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eleventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 87



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11B. 
  

Agenda Page 88



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

October 16, 2017 

 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT 

 

WA #117 – Tamarac Interconnect – Closed 

 Construction complete. 

 System was tested on September 25th in presence of Tamarac and CSID staff – no issues.  

 

WA #118 – Margate Interconnect – In progress  

 Final Design delivered 3/27/17.   

 Begin directional drill (8/07/17). 

 Excavations for vaults had to be backfilled in preparation for Irma.   

 Construction to resume 10/09/17 (compete by end of November). 

 Structures should be set by 10/20/17 – approximately 3 weeks behind schedule. 

 

WA #122 – CSID Administration Building Structural Assessment – Closeout 

 Authorization approved by Board – 2/27/17. 

 Report of Findings to staff -  9/19/17.  
 

WA #123 – Canal Sites 6 – 12 Assessment – In Progress 

 Authorization approved by Board – 5/15/17 

 Field assessment completed 9/18/17. 

 Reviewing survey and inspection reports from Avirom and IDC 

 Completed aerial photography on 9/29/17. 

 Summary report to be submitted within 4 weeks. 

 

WA #124 – Effluent Pump Station Electrical Improvements – In Progress 

 Authorization approved by Board – 5/15/17 

 Final design submitted for review week of 8/21/17. 

 Construction to begin in 10/10/17 and should be complete by end of year.  

 

WA #125 – RO Membrane Concentrate Valve Replacement - Closeout 

 Authorization approved by Board – 4/17/17. 

 Construction completed in August. 

 Minor adjustments needed to valve indicator. 
 

WA #126 – Well 4R Redevelopment 

 Authorization approved by Board – 7/17/17 

 Air surging of well began – 8/03/17 

 High rate pumping began – 9/01/17 

 Work discontinued due to Irma – resumed 9/25/17. 

 Completed development and conducted step pumping test. 
 

WA #127 – Plant F Return Activated Sludge Valve Replacement 

 Authorization approved by Board – 8/21/17 

 Mechanical work completed 10/04/17 – new valve operational. 

 Will perform painting, sodding and prepare closeout documents within next month. 

 

Agenda Page 89



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

October 16, 2017 

 

 

 

PROJECTS PENDING 

   
 

 WA #128 – Sodium Hypochlorite Tank 1 & 3 Replacement – on October Board Agenda 

 

 WA #129 - Fluoride System Replacement – on October Board Agenda 

- Conducted a grant review meeting with Florida Department of Health (FDH) on 9/14. 

Awarded $200,000 grant for system installation. 

- Grant agreement under review 

 

 WA #12X – DIW Monitor Well Replacement  

- Developing specifications to solicit cost for well drilling 

- Developing design and costs for well head 

- Conducted meeting with staff to review potential location and assumptions – 9/27/17 

- Preparing permit application 

- On December Agenda 

 

Agenda Page 90



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11C 

Agenda Page 91



Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2017 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 24 27 25 38 35 34 26 30 33 272

Mis-Reads 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 3

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2016 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 28 32 25 44 49 22 29 49 30 38 26 44 416

Mis-Reads 5 3 2 0 2 2 2 2 3 1 2 0 24

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2015 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 40 27 33 33 43 43 40 37 36 23 25 38 418

Mis-Reads 4 2 0 0 0 1 0 3 2 1 0 1 14

Meter Calibration Tests 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Agenda Page 92



Page 1 of 2 
 

                                                                    

                           October Report to the Board of Directors for the Water Plant 

                               Report Includes Updates through 10/4/2017 

 

Well 4R 

  Work Authorization # 126, presented by Globaltech, was approved at the July board meeting in the amount 

of $67,852 which was to redevelop this well. Globaltech, Centerline Drilling, and Connect Consulting have 

been working together throughout this development. At this point they have developed the well for 115 of the 

120 hours that was specified in the WA. They are pleased with the results thus far and the well should be 

ready to be placed back in service soon. 

SCADA system upgrades 

  ADS engineering has installed the new hard drives, work stations, and software one of our two servers. The 

new system is performing well and we have provided them with the green light to move forward with the 

upgrades to the second server. They have the second upgrade tentatively scheduled for the week of 10/9.  

Concentrate valve replacement 

 In the April meeting WA #125, presented by Globaltech in the amount of $76,873, was approved to replace 

the 2” undersized concentrate valves on each of our three trains. All three valves have been installed and we 

are now operating at 85% recovery on all three trains. We have already started to reduce acid and antiscalant 

dosages. We will monitor these adjustments closely and adjust where necessary. By reducing our recovery 

rate by less than 3% we will be able to eliminate acid addition in our pretreatment, as well as cut our 

antiscalant dosage by 25%. We estimate that this will result in an annual cost savings of approximately 

$75,500 in chemical expenses. With that being said the ROI for this project is less than 13 months.            

Storage Tank Cleaning 

 The Florida Administrative Code requires us to clean and inspect our above ground storage tanks every five 

years. We last performed this in February of 2013. Staff presented a piggyback opportunity with Underwater 

Solutions to the board at the September meeting which was approved. We had them perform this work on the 

1 and ¾ million gallon storage tanks on 9/29. The divers located a small leak on the floor of the 3/4 million 

gallon tank and were able to repair it. The plan is to have them reenter the tank to inspect the repair 

sometime in January when they are back in south Florida. 

Agenda Page 93



Page 2 of 2 
 

Cartridge Filter Purchases 

 We are presented a piggyback opportunity off of a contract that Waco filters has in place with Palm Beach 

County at this meeting. The filters are similarly priced to what we have been purchasing. This contract expires 

in November of 2018. They do not currently have any contracts in place, with our exact filter specs, for a 

longer term. If this is approved we will have to look for another purchasing option later next year. 

Fluoridation system upgrade (Grant)  

 The Florida Dental Health Program has verbally offered us a grant in the amount of $200,000 to upgrade our 

fluoridation system. This is the oldest chemical feed system at the water plant and it is in need of some 

improvements. The state had a few requirements that we needed to meet before they would send us a 

contract. We have met all of those requirements and are now just awaiting receipt of the contract for the 

grant funds. Globaltech has prepared a work authorization to perform the work and assist with meeting the 

requirements of the grant funding. The $200,000 must be spent by June 30th 2018. We were hoping to have 

the contract and WA on this agenda but we are still waiting on the contract as of 10/4. 

Hypochlorite tank replacements 

 We replaced one, of our three, hypochlorite tanks after we noticed some concerns with its integrity. After this 

tank was placed in service we drained and inspected the other two tanks and found the same issues. We have 

asked Globaltech to draft a WA to replace the other two tanks. This WA is included in the agenda for your 

consideration. These two replacement tanks were budgeted for in this FY budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 94



 

 Coral Springs Improvement District 

Wastewater Department Report 

October 2017 Board Meeting 

 

 

Ongoing Projects  
 

Globaltech has notified the District that they are progressing with the following approved work 

authorizations (WA):  

 

WA# 124 – Effluent Pump Station Electrical Improvements 

 

 Project construction is set to start on Monday October 9, 2017.  

 

 

WA # 127 – Plant F RAS Valve Replacement 

 The project started on Monday October 2, 2017.  The new RAS valve is scheduled to 

be installed on Wednesday October 4, 2017 and should be completed by Friday, 

October 6, 2017.  Once the new RAS valve has been installed and tested, the 

operations team will put Plant F back online.  

Operations 
 

Staff members Bert Underwood, William Brock and Vasco Thompson manned the Wastewater 

Facility during Hurricane Irma.  Bert, William and Vasco did a great job to keep the facility in 

compliance during Hurricane Irma.  

 

Agenda Page 95



   Coral Springs Improvement District   

Drainage Report October 17, 2017 

Board of Supervisors Meeting  

Flood Control: 

Drainage field crews completed an initial assessment of damage caused by Hurricane Irma. 

Pictures of each location and a marked up map were created. This information was shared 

with NRCS and our disaster recovery contractors Phillips and Jordan and Rostan Solutions. 

Hurricane Irma: 

NRCS (National Resources Conservation Service) has conducted an inspection of various 

locations within the drainage system on Sept. 26, 2017, we are awaiting a letter to 

acknowledge/deny eligibility for funding from them. 

 

Agenda Page 96



Drainage Report Oct. 16, 2017     pg.2 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 97



Drainage Report Oct. 16, 2017    pg.3 

 

 

Iguana Management: November 2016 through August 2017 

 

6.72
6.64

6.72 6.72

7.27

7

6.64 6.61

6.44

6.87

6.78

6.64
6.69

6.93

6.62

6.93 6.93

7.48

7.25

7.08

6.94
6.9

7.05

6.84
6.79

6.75

SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

R

A

I

N

F

A

L

L

I

N

C

H

E

S

C

A

N

A

L

L

E

V

E

L

I

N

N

G

V

D

2

9

F

E

E

T

CANAL LEVELS AND RAINFALL
Avg. basin elevation and total rainfall

RAIN EAST BASIN WEST BASIN 6.5 NGVD 29 PERMIT LEVEL

16 15

25

9

13

7
9 10

16

7

6 5 6
3 4

6
4 5

7
4

0 0

14

3
6

4
7

3 4 5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

November December January February March April May June July August

Iguana's controlled

East Sta West Sta Admin Bldg

Agenda Page 98



 

Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection 

Department Report 

10-16-17 board Meeting  

 

 There were 33 water breaks in the month of September, same as the total last month. 

 

 AP Engineering is still working in Ramblewood subdivision. They continue to make excellent 

progress. They are on track for January completion date due to hurricane storm delays.  

    

  Tamarac/ CSID interconnect has been tested with Tamarac, CSID and globalTec personnel on 

hand, to test its function. It flows well in both directions and the meters work. 

 

  The Margate/CSID interconnect project is under construction at the time.  Some delay has been 

incurred due to Storm events.  

 

  Trio Development Corporation is 50% complete with lift station 33, the last of 4 stations in their 

contract.  

 

 I am in the process of Pricing and purchasing pressure sensors for 4 off site locations to monitor 

system pressures out in the field.  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

 

 

 

Agenda Page 99


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Financials
	5th - Dock Policy
	7th - Purchase of Cartridge Filters
	8th - Placeholder for Cargo Trailer
	9th - TRIO Change Order
	10A - WA 128
	10B - WA 129
	10C - WA 115.1
	10D - WA 125.1
	11B - Engineer's Report
	11C - Department Reports
	Utility Billing Work Orders
	Water Department Report
	Wastewater Department Report
	Stormwater Department Report
	Field Department Report



